
 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

Agenda 
 

The December 2021 meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Chemung County Library District 
will be held will be held on Thursday December 16 at 6:00 pm at the Steele Memorial Library, 
101 E. Church St., Elmira, NY 14901 and on ZOOM (Preferred method of attendance). The 
agenda for the meeting is listed below.  If you are unable to attend, please inform Ms. Dworkin 
(607-398-2021), Mrs. Mellott (733-8607), or Mr. Shaw (733-8611).   
 
1.  Call to order  
2.  Pledge of allegiance 

Presentation by Rebecca Jackson (Home School Program) 
3.  Approval of minutes (document #2021-67)  
4.  Treasurer’s report 
 a) Financial report (document 2021-68)  
 b) Report of Unpaid Bills Detail (document 2021-69)  
5.  Correspondence  
6.  President’s report (Dworkin) 
7.  Director’s Report 

Consent Item: Approval of Personnel Actions 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the personnel actions as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of 2022 Holidays 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the 2022 Holidays as submitted. 
Consent Item: Approval of 2022 Board/Committee meetings 
Resolved that the CCLD Board of Trustees approve the 2022 meeting schedule as submitted. 

8.  Committee reports:   
a)  Executive Committee (Dworkin)  
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2021-70) 
b)  Budget & Finance Committee (Schamel) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2021-71)  

 c)  Building & Grounds Committee (Schwesinger) 
 1)  Report of the Committee meeting (document 2021-72) 

 d) Personnel Committee (Appenzellar)  
 e) Election and Continuity Committee (Rogan) 
 f) Advocacy Committee  
9. Executive Session 
10.  Old business     
11.  New business 
12.  Period for public expression  
13.  Adjournment  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

To: CCLD Board of Trustees Executive Committee 
 
From: Ronald W. Shaw, Director 
 
Date: 1 December 2021 
 
Subject: Meetings for 2022 
 
The meetings of the Board of Trustees of the County Library District will be held the 
third Thursday of each month at 6 pm. The schedule and location follows: January 20 
(Steele); February 17 (Steele); March 17 (Steele); April 21 (Steele); May 19 (West Elmira); 
June 16 (Steele); July 21 (Van Etten); August 18 (West Elmira); September 15; (Steele); 
October 20 (Big Flats); November 17 (Horseheads); December 15 (Steele). 
 
The meetings of the Executive Committee of the Chemung County Library District will 
be held the first Wednesday of each month at 6 pm in the Petrie Conference Room of the 
Steele Memorial Library. January 5; February 2; March 2; April 6; May 4; June 1; July 6; 
August 3; September 7; October 5; November 2; December 7.  
 
The meetings of the Budget & Finance Committee of the Chemung County Library 
District will be held the second Wednesday of each month at 8:45 am in the Petrie 
Conference Room of the Steele Memorial Library. January 12; February 9; March 9; April 
13; May 11; June 8; July 13; August 10; September 14; October 12; November 9; 
December 14. 
 
The meetings of the Building & Grounds Committee of the Chemung County Library 
District will be held the first Wednesday of each month at 5:30pm in the Petrie Conference 
Room of the Steele Memorial Library. January 5; February 2; March 2; April 6; May 4; 
June 1; July 6; August 3; September 7; October 5; November 2; December 7.  
 
 
The meetings of the Personnel Committee of the Chemung County Library District are to 
be determined.   
 
 
  
  

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/


(Minutes of the November 18, 2021 meeting of the Chemung County Library District 

Board of Trustees. Document #2021-67) 

  
The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by President Rachel Dworkin. Present in person 
in the auditorium at the Steele Memorial Library Ms. Lee Saginario. Present via Zoom were 
Ms. Ann Hayes, Mr. Kevin Hansen, Ms. Phyllis Rogan, Mr. Mark Padgett, Ms. Pamela 
Larnard, Ms. Jessica Roberts, Mr. Jack Schamel, Ms. Penny Appenzellar.  Ms. Pat 
Silvernail, Ms. Bonnie Chollet, Mr. Karl Schwesinger, and Ms. Crystal Gullo-Buzzetti.  
Excused: Ms. Martha Smith.  Also present were Holly Melott and Ron Shaw on behalf of 
the Library District’s Administration.  Public representation: attending, via Zoom, Chemung 
County resident Ms. Muriel Friend. 
 
Minutes.  The minutes of the October 21, 2021, meeting (Document #2021-58) were 
presented for board review. Ms. Hayes moved that the October Board minutes be approved 
as amended, seconded by Ms. Chollet. VOTE:  Unanimously Approved.   
 
Financial Report. The October 2021 Financial Report (Document #2021-56) was presented 
for board review.  Mr. Padgett moved, seconded by Ms. Larnard, to approve the October 
Financial Report as presented. VOTE: Unanimously Approved.  
 
Report of Unpaid Bills (Document #2021-63) Ms. Chollet moved, seconded by Ms. 
Roberts, that the board authorize the payment of the unpaid bills dated 11/18/2021 for the 
General Fund - $16,517.53, Central Library District and Central Book Aid Fund-$15,522.06.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Mr. Padgett, that Mr. Shaw be 
granted permission to sign the checks in lieu of the officers, due to electronic 
attendance.  VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Rogan moved, seconded by Ms. Appenzellar, that the 
November Personnel Actions be approved as presented.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.   
 
Correspondence: 

 Mr. Shaw has received and responded to the Real Property Tax Office letter 
requesting the tax levy. 

 A donation in the amount of $600 was received from Ms. Karen Yamasawki, funds 
are to be used where needed most. 

 
President’s Report.    Ms. Dworkin stated that she had submitted a letter to the editor for 
print in the Star Gazette, acknowledging the exemplary service provided by CCLD and 
thanking local taxpayers for their show of support on Election Day.  Additional submissions 
were encouraged. 
 
Director’s Report 

 A draft copy of the STLS approved Central Library plan has been sent out for 
review, a vote at the December Executive Committee meeting is requested. 

 One staff member at Steele Memorial has tested positive for Covid-19, 
documentation is required for return to work.  Four other staff members are off and 
awaiting test results.   

 Digital Media Lab rules have been distributed for board review, a vote at the 
December Executive Committee meeting is requested. 



 A request from the Chemung County Health Department for children’s books was 
directed to the CCLD Friends organization, Steele Juvenile Department, and Mr. 
Owen Frank. 

 Two hours of annual trustee training will be required, beginning in 2023.  Mr. Shaw 
proposes that the board begin enacting in 2022. 
  

Executive Committee.  The report of the Executive Committee was presented in writing to 
the board (Document #2021-59) 
Budget & Finance Committee.  The report of the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
was presented in writing to the board. (Document #2021-60)  
 
Buildings & Grounds Committee. The report of the Buildings & Grounds Committee 
meeting was presented in writing to the board (Document #2021-61).   The cement for the 
sidewalk and ramp have been poured at Steele and will be usable on 11/22.  The handicap 
parking space will be detailed on 11/21 and the railing will be installed in the near future. 
 
Personnel Committee.    
 
Election & Continuity Committee.  Attached.  The next meeting will be held Thursday, 
November 18, 2021 at 5:30 in the small conference room at Steele. 
 
Advocacy Committee.   
 
Old Business.    

New Business.   

Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet to adjourn.  VOTE:  Unanimously 
Approved.   

The next regular meeting of the board will be held on Thursday, December 16, 2021, at 
6:00pm online via Zoom. 















Document #2021-70 
 
Report of the December 1, 2021 meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District:   
 
The meeting came to order at 6:00pm. Attending the meeting via Zoom person, from the Executive 
Committee were Rachel Dworkin, Martha Smith and Phyllis Rogan.   Other board members attending via 
Zoom were Mark Padgett, Penny Appenzellar, Lee Saginario, Bonnie Chollet, Karl Schwesinger, Pat 
Silvernail, Pam Larnard, and Kevin Hansen. Ronald Shaw and Holly Melott, CCLD management, were 
also present via Zoom.    
 
Ms. Dworkin called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
UNPAID BILLS:  Ms. Melott submitted the Unpaid Bill List dated 12/1/21 in the amount of $46,370.30 
for the General Fund and $335.06 for the Central Library District and Central Book Aid Fund.  Ms. 
Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Silvernail, to approve payment of the General and Central 
Library District and Central Book Aid Fund bills as submitted in writing.  VOTE: Unanimously 
Approved.    
 
CONSENT ITEM:  Ms. Dworkin moved, seconded by Ms. Chollet, that Mr. Shaw be 
granted permission to sign the checks in lieu of the officers, due to electronic attendance.  
VOTE: Unanimously Approved.   
 
Mr. Shaw reported on the following: 

 The Van Etten branch will close 30 minutes early on December 22 and 29 to maintain contractual 
holiday stipulations. 

 Mr. Shaw is awaiting an estimate from F.A.S.T. for an updated monitor to be used on the second 
floor at Steele. 

 The Digital Media Lab rules will be reviewed by the librarians at the department head meeting on 
December 7, and will then be brought to the board for approval. 

 
Ms. Rogan expressed her gratitude for librarian, Jennie Lewis’s attentive service. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:15 pm.  The next meeting of the Executive Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District will be held on Wednesday, January 5, 2022 in the auditorium of the Steele 
Memorial Library and via Zoom. 



Document #2021-71 
 
Report of the December 8, 2021 meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee of the 
Chemung County Library District.  
 
Attending the meeting via Zoom: Mr. Jack Schamel, Ms. Rachel Dworkin, and Ms. Ann Hayes. 
Also in attendance Holly Melott and Ron Shaw, CCLD Administration. The meeting opened at 
8:45 a.m. 
 
Ms. Melott presented the November 30, 2021 Financial Report to the Committee. The report will 
be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Ms. Melott presented the Unpaid Bill List dated December 16, 2021 for the General Fund - 
$53,201.87; for the Central Library District and Central Book Aid Fund- $3,877.24. The Unpaid 
Bills Details will be forwarded to the full CCLD board for its consideration.  
 
Mr. Shaw noted that $18,278.40 in PILOT funds had recently been received. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:50am.  The next meeting of the Budget & Finance Committee will 
be held on Wednesday, January 5, 2022 at 8:45 a.m. at the Steele Memorial Library and via 
Zoom. 
   
 
 



Document #2021-72  
 
 
Report of the December 1, 2021 meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee of the Chemung 
County Library District 
 
The meeting opened at 5:30 pm. Present via Zoom were Ms. Rachel Dworkin and Ms. Lee 
Saginario.  Also attending was Ms. Holly Melott, CCLD Management. 
 
The Committee received reports on the following: 

 Wenzel filled in and seeded the area surrounding the new ramp and sidewalk at Steele. 
 The railing will be installed once all sections have been received. 
 The handicap parking detail was delayed due to inclement weather. 

 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45pm.  

The next regular meeting of the Buildings & Grounds Committee will be held on Wednesday, 
January 5, 2022 at 5:30pm in the auditorium of the Steele Memorial Library. 

 
 



Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age Total %-age

Adult Non-Fiction 1180 7.73% 1,664 8.13% 2,108 7.85% 1950 7.91% 1681 7.05% 1867 7.15% 1813 6.70% 1991 7.20% 1904 7.27% 1818 6.80% 1826 7.03% #DIV/0! 19,802 7.31% 15338 5.92% 27,378 10.57%

Adult Fiction 3027 19.84% 4,454 21.76% 5,990 22.32% 5406 21.94% 5142 21.56% 6037 23.13% 5999 22.16% 6566 23.73% 5859 22.38% 5652 21.15% 5273 20.30% #DIV/0! 59,405 21.94% 44049 17.01% 79,031 30.52%

Juv NF 624 4.09% 963 4.70% 1,407 5.24% 1242 5.04% 1088 4.56% 1111 4.26% 1395 5.15% 1331 4.81% 1511 5.77% 1694 6.34% 1443 5.56% #DIV/0! 13,809 5.10% 10002 3.86% 18,967 7.32%

Juv Fic 2128 13.95% 3,490 17.05% 5,456 20.33% 5288 21.46% 5012 21.01% 5660 21.69% 6259 23.12% 5832 21.08% 5476 20.92% 5597 20.94% 5442 20.95% #DIV/0! 55,640 20.55% 39831 15.38% 82,350 31.80%

AV 1718 11.26% 2,766 13.51% 4,136 15.41% 4305 17.47% 4303 18.04% 4672 17.90% 4610 17.03% 4335 15.67% 4360 16.66% 4354 16.29% 4551 17.52% #DIV/0! 44,110 16.29% 45558 17.59% 120,261 46.44%

Periodicals 83 0.54% 160 0.78% 160 0.60% 106 0.43% 137 0.57% 160 0.61% 139 0.51% 138 0.50% 107 0.41% 101 0.38% 132 0.51% #DIV/0! 1,423 0.53% 959 0.37% 1,794 0.69%

Other 141 0.92% 279 1.36% 342 1.27% 164 0.67% 70 0.29% 62 0.24% 121 0.45% 100 0.36% 227 0.87% 687 2.57% 725 2.79% #DIV/0! 2,918 1.08% 1868 0.72% 5,297 2.05%

Public Pcs 8 0.05% 227 1.11% 441 1.64% 413 1.68% 448 1.88% 1280 4.90% 553 2.04% 657 2.37% 597 2.28% 654 2.45% 581 2.24% #DIV/0! 5,859 2.16% 4491 1.73% 21,738 8.39%

Wireless 1063 6.97% 1,088 5.32% 1,488 5.54% 962 3.90% 1120 4.70% 612 2.35% 1320 4.88% 1441 5.21% 1357 5.18% 1350 5.05% 1440 5.54% #DIV/0! 13,241 4.89% 18284 7.06% 34,341 13.26%

Down Audio 1528 10.02% 1,432 7.00% 1,630 6.07% 1601 6.50% 1598 6.70% 1599 6.13% 1597 5.90% 1718 6.21% 1633 6.24% 1649 6.17% 2490 9.59% #DIV/0! 18,475 6.82% 17359 6.70% 13,330 5.15%

Down Ebooks 3261 21.38% 3,190 15.59% 3,171 11.81% 2751 11.16% 2859 11.99% 2699 10.34% 2828 10.45% 3154 11.40% 2692 10.28% 2691 10.07% 1625 6.26% #DIV/0! 30,921 11.42% 35431 13.68% 24,191 9.34%

Down Music 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00% 0 0.00% 0.00% #DIV/0! 0 #DIV/0! 17809 6.88% 35,953 13.88%

Down Video 79 0.52% 219 1.07% 91 0.34% 90 0.37% 67 0.28% 47 0.18% 178 0.66% 52 0.19% 35 0.13% 41 0.15% 31 0.12% #DIV/0! 930 0.34% 3660 1.41% 17,156 6.63%

Down Mags 416 2.73% 536 2.62% 419 1.56% 366 1.49% 326 1.37% 290 1.11% 263 0.97% 353 1.28% 419 1.60% 441 1.65% 417 1.61% #DIV/0! 4,246 1.57% 4318 1.67% 3,362 1.30%

Total 15,256 20,468 26,839 24,644 23,851 26,096 27,075 27668 26177 26729 25976 0 270,779 258,957 507,466

Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 20192021 2020



Holidays and Observances for 2022 

January 1  Saturday New Year's Day (Closed) 

January 17  Monday Martin Luther King Day SML Open 

February 21  Monday Presidents Day SML Open 

May 30   Monday Memorial Day Closed 

June 20   Monday Juneteenth Observed (Closed) 

July 4   Monday Independence Day Observed (Closed)  

September 5  Monday Labor Day Closed 

October 10  Monday Columbus Day (SML Open) 

November 11  Friday  Veteran's Day (SML Open) 

November 24  Thursday Thanksgiving Closed 

November 25  Friday    Day after Thanksgiving (Closed)   

December 23  Friday  Christmas Eve Observed (Open 9-1) 

December 26  Monday Christmas Day Observed (Closed) 

December 30  Friday  New Year's Eve Observed (Open 9-1) 

  

 

Monday, January 17- Steele will be open 10-6 

Monday February 21- Steele will be open 10-6 

Monday, October 10- Steele will be open 10-6 

Thursday, November 11- Steele will be open 10-6 

Friday, December 23- All branches will be open 9-1   

Friday, December 30- All branches will be open 9-1  



 

  
 
 
The Chemung County Library District, with 
neighborhood libraries in Big Flats, the 
Bookmobile, Elmira, Horseheads, Van Etten, 
West Elmira, and on the web at 
www.ccld.lib.ny.us 

 

 

To: CCLD Board of Trustees  
 
From: Ronald W. Shaw, Director 
 
Date: December 10, 2021 
 
Subject: Approval of Personnel Actions  
 
 
Promotions: 
 
Change FT/PT Status: 
 
Retirement: 
N/A 
 
End of Probationary Period- Permanent Appointment: 
N/A 
 
New Hires: 
 
Resignations: 
N/A 
 
Terminations: 
N/A 
 
Leave: 
N/A 
 
Step Increases: 
Amy Coston- Teen Services Clerk to Step 4 

http://www.ccld.lib.ny.us/

	Agenda 2021-12
	2022 Meeting Dates
	Document 2021-67
	Document 2021-68
	Document 2021-69a
	Document 2021-69b
	Document 2021-70
	Document 2021-71
	Document 2021-72
	Circ by Month Nov 2021
	Holidays and Observances 2022
	Appendix C Personnel Actions December



